ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
April 30, 2003
8:15 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative JimWitaker, Co-Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Mses

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Vic Kohring
Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch
Representative Peggy W1 son

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Dan Ogg
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative John Harris

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PUBLI C EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT SYSTEM ACTUARI AL VALUATION - QJY
BELL

- HEARD [See 7:10 a.m mnutes for this date]
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 9
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to an appropriation limt and a spending limt.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 26

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to and limting appropriations from and inflation-
proofing the Al aska pernmanent fund by establishing a percent of
mar ket val ue spending limt.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2003



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HHR 9

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM  APPROPRI ATI ON/ SPENDI NG LIM T
REPRESENTATI VE( S) STOLTZE

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 31/ 03

01/31/03
02/ 11/03
02/ 11/03

03/ 28/ 03
04/ 04/ 03
04/ 09/ 03

04/ 09/ 03
04/ 09/ 03
04/ 17/ 03

04/ 17/ 03
04/ 17/ 03
04/ 24/ 03

04/ 24/ 03
04/ 24/ 03
04/ 29/ 03
04/ 29/ 03

04/ 29/ 03
04/ 30/ 03

Jr n- Page
0102

0102

0687
0797

BILL: HIR 26

IT T ITIT ITITT ITIT IIT 3IIIT I

NN /N

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( STA)
COSPONSOR('S): ROKEBERG
WM REFERRAL ADDED BEFORE STA
WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( W&M)
WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( W&M)
WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( W&M)
WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519
Heard & Held -- Location
Change - -
M NUTE( W&M)
WM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM  PF APPROPS/ | NFLATI ON- PROCFI NG
RLS BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T BY

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
04/ 17/ 03

04/ 17/ 03
04/ 22/ 03

04/ 22/ 03

Jr n- Page
1025

1025

HOUSE WM COW TTEE

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
WM JUD, FIN
WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519
Heard & Hel d

April 30, 2003



M NUTE( V&M

04/ 24/ 03 (H) VWM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 24/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( W&M)

04/ 25/ 03 (H) WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 25/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( W&M)

04/ 29/ 03 (H) WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 29/ 03 (H Heard & Held -- Location
Change - -
M NUTE( W&M)

04/ 30/ 03 (H) WM AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

W TNESS REG STER

ROBERT BARTHOLOVEW Chief Operating O ficer

Al aska Per manent Fund Cor poration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
guesti ons.

RON LORENSEN, Attorney at Law

Si mpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen, and Longenbaugh

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  As outside counsel to the Al aska Pernmanent
Fund Corporation, he testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
questi ons.

JAY HOGAN, Deputy Director

O fice of Managenent and Budget

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 26 and answered questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
[For the overview on the Public Enployee Retirenent System
Actuarial Valuation by Guy Bell, see the 7:10 a.m mnutes for

this date.]

TAPE 03-19, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- April 30, 2003



CO- CHAIR JI M WHI TAKER cal | ed the House Special Conmittee on Ways
and Means neeting to order at 8:15 a.m Representatives Hawker,
Wi t aker, Heinze, Rokeberg, G uenberg, and Moses were present at
the call to order. Al so present were Representatives Seaton,
Qgg, Sanuels, and Harris.

HIR 9- CONST AM APPROPRI ATI ON/ SPENDI NG LIM T

CO CHAIR WHI TAKER announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 9, Proposing anmendnents to
the Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to an
appropriation imt and a spending limt.

Number 0037

REPRESENTATIVE CO- CHAIR HAWKER noved to adopt comittee
substitute (CS) for HIR 9, Version 23-LS0435\H, Cook, 4/29/03,
as the working docunent. There being no objection, Version H
was before the conmttee.

[At this point there is a notion to adopt CSHIR 26, Version 23-
LS1006\ I, Cook, 4/29/03, as the working docunent. The
di scussion related to HIR 26 happens later, which is where the
notion is noted.]

CO CHAIR WH TAKER said HIR 9 is a constitutional appropriation
limt, which is one of the conponents of a |ong-term budget
solution. He told the nenbers his intent is to nove HIR 9 [out
of commttee] tonorrow.

Number 0346

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested an anendnent to the [10]
exenpti ons under subsection (a), Appropriation Limt, that would
i ncl ude appropriations for capital projects. He expl ai ned that
there wll be times when the legislature decides that
investnments in state infrastructure may be inportant. For
exanple, the legislature may need to match abnormally high
federal appropriations or wuse public works nonies to help
[recover fron] an econom c disaster. Having some flexibility
with capital projects nay be warranted, he said.

CO- CHAI R WHI TAKER announced that the commttee will take action
on anendnents tonorrow.

Number 0609

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- April 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked about the changes in Version H of
HIR 9.

CO CHAI R WHI TAKER said he would prefer to answer those questions
tomorrow, giving conmttee nmenbers tine to review the CS

CO CHAIR HAWKER offered to summarize the differences between
Version H of the conmttee substitute and the original bill

Nunmber 0649

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the commttee wll be
di scussing the differences between the 4/16/03, Version D, and
the 4/29/03, Version H, conmttee substitutes.

COCHAIR HAWKER recalled that the Version D draft was not
adopted, although it was discussed. The substantive difference
between the two versions is that in Version Hon page 1, line 7,
the option of a 2 percent increase in the base |evel of
appropriations can be passed each year by a sinple nmgjority.
Subsection (b) on page 2, starting on line 11, adds a second 2
percent [increase] that can be achieved with a two-thirds vote
of each house; and the last 2 percent increnent is subject to a
three-quarters vote of each house of the |egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that the budget could grow a
maxi num of 6 percent in one year.

CO CHAI R WHI TAKER suggested considering that increase in |ight
of the presentation earlier today by Guy Bell, D rector of
Retirement and Benefits, Departnment of Adm nistration. G ven
the rising costs of the Public Enployees' Retirenent System
(PERS), the first 2 percent increase would have to absorb the
i ncreasing costs of the retirenent fund.

COCHAIR HAWKER noted that the hurdles to achieve 4 and 6
percent increnents are substantial with a two-thirds and then a
three-quarters vote of the nenbers of each house of the
| egi sl ature.

Nunmber 0847

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said on page 2, line 28, there appears
to be a sunset in [FY] 2013. He added that there is a
difference in |anguage between the two proposed commttee
substitutes: on page 2, line 29 of Version H and on page 2,
starting on line 28 in Version D.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2003



CO CHAI R WHI TAKER suggested delaying these questions until the
next neeti ng.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it mght be helpful to conpare the
differences in the two conmmittee substitutes with a chart or
t abl e.

Nunber 1051

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG  echoed Representati ve Rokeberg' s
concern that the legislature retain sone flexibility in the
capi tal budget. However, he said he is not sure howto do it in
t he constitution.

Number 1200

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the legislature wll be
repeal ing the existing constitutional spending limt.

CO- CHAIR WHI TAKER replied yes, the intention is to repeal it;
however, he is not certain that it is in this draft of the
resol ution.

[HIR 9 was hel d over.]

HIR 26- CONST. AM PF APPROPS/ | NFLATI ON- PROCFI NG

Nunber 1233

CO CHAIR WHI TAKER announced that the |ast order of Dbusiness
woul d be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 26, Proposing anmendnents to
the Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to and limting
appropriations from and inflation-proofing the Al aska permanent
fund by establishing a percent of market value spending limt.

[ The followi ng notion occurred at the beginning of the neeting,
imredi ately after the notion regarding the adoption of the CS
for HIR 9. The notion is as follows: REPRESENTATI VE CO CHAI R
HAWKER noved to adopt conmmttee substitute (CS) for HIR 26,
Version 23-LS1006\1, Cook, 4/29/03, as the working docunent.
There being no objection, Version | was before the commttee.]

Nunmber 1346

RON LORENSEN, Attorney at Law, Sinpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen,
and Longenbaugh; testifying as outside counsel to the Al aska

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2003



Per manent Fund Corporation, testified in support of HIR 26 and
answered questions. He told the menbers that a working group
convened vyesterday afternoon at the direction of Co-Chair
Whitaker to review a couple of alternate fornulations of
| anguage. The main focus was subsection (b) on the top of page
2 of the commttee substitute draft. He explained that as a
result of that discussion there was unani nbus agreenent as to
what the appropriate substitution for the |anguage in subsection
(b) should be. He told the nenbers that is what is before the
commttee now in the new work draft, Version |I. M. Lorensen
said that in order to make the title consistent with that change
the title has been adjusted slightly. The last two words "over

time" that were in Version H have been renoved. O herw se, he
commented, the title renmins the sane. He noted that there is a
m nor change in Section 1 of the bill. The new | anguage that

has been provi ded changed the | anguage in Version H from "Except
as provided in (b) of this section", to the Ianguage in Version
| which says, "Except as appropriated under this section". He
said he believes this an appropriate change.

Nunber 1612

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG commented that he does appreciate the
efforts of M. Lorensen, M. Bartholonew, and M. Hogan, and the
menbers who worked on the committee substitute. However, he
mai ntained his disconfort with the objective. He said he
understands the corporation's desire to give some assurance to
the public that there will be some constraint on the part of the
| egislature in ternms of determning what the appropriation
shoul d not exceed. Representati ve Rokeberg told the nenbers he
understands the political inplications in offering the public
sonme confort; however, he is still not convinced that litigation
mght not rise out of this legislation if there were sone
di sagreenent in the amount appropriated by the I|egislature. It
appears that while this |anguage certainly preserves a policy
objective of offsetting inflationary inpacts and maintaining the
real value of the fund, he said he is not sure that is the
proper economic policy that the legislature should pursue.
Representati ve Rokeberg enphasized that he does not disagree
with the policy objectives put forth in the bill, but he is
concerned about possible litigation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he would prefer to have the bill's
| anguage default to that presented in Version D and would offer
anmendnents that would elimnate the first sentence in subsection
(b). He recommended that the commttee and the corporation

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2003



focus on the statutory framework which needs to go with the
anmendnent to be put forth before the people [of the state].

Nunber 1957

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG told the nenbers that he believes that
in order for the people to understand this l|egislation, there
wil | need to be nore than a stand-alone constitutional
anmendnent . He said that the policy issues the corporation puts
forth, that he agrees wth, can be addressed through the
statutes, rather than the constitution.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that there needs to be nore
di scussi on about this issue.

COCHAIR HAWKER comented that Representative Rokeberg's
position is consistent with the conceptual vision of a |ong-
range fiscal plan that was discussed in commttee a couple of
days ago. In those discussions the nenbers envisioned an
acconpanying statute to explain what the legislative intent is
regarding this constitutional amendnent, as well as, what to do
with the appropriations that would be nade subsequent to this
anendnent . He summarized his comments by saying that he agrees
with the position put forth by Representative Rokeberg.

Nunber 2235

ROBERT BARTHOLOVEW Chief Operating Oficer, Al aska Permanent
Fund Corporation, testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
guesti ons. He told the nenbers that Representative Rokeberg's
statenent does bring to focus one question that needs to be
addressed, which is the purpose of the proposed |anguage. Bot h
the original version and Version |, try to blend the two
sentences together so that there is one standard from which to
wei gh what should be appropriated from the permanent fund,
instead of two [standards], he said. M. Barthol onrew told the
nmenbers that the board supports having one concept. The policy
statenent that this sentence makes is that it is inportant to
maintain the real value of the permanent fund and protect it
agai nst inflation. He pointed out a question that needs to be
answered by the conmttee and |egislature. If the language is
taken out and only the 5 percent spending limt remains, could
there be policies stated in statutes that would be different
than the policy statenent here, of protecting the real value of
t he permanent fund, he asked. That is why the board believes it
is inportant to have the language [in the constitution], and it
is up to the legislature to decide if it is the policy it wants

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2003



al so. He urged the nenbers to focus on that issue and not nobve
the policy statement to statute.

CO CHAIR WHI TAKER asked if the option provides that a mandatory
5 percent of the value [of the fund] will be allocated or up to
5 percent [will be allocated].

Number 2424

MR. BARTHOLOVEW replied that the when saying 5 percent will be
al l ocated, he reads that as saying a mandatory 5 percent. There
are other options. He commented that [the |anguage shoul d be]
up to 5 percent nmay be all ocat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that he conpletely agrees wth
M. Bartholonmew that the anobunt should not exceed 5 percent. A
policy call by each legislature would be required; however,
there would be a cap on how nuch can be appropriated. He
coormented that there may be a tendency to default to the 5
percent. Representati ve Rokeberg told nenbers he does not
disagree with this policy, but the question is where to put it.
If it is placed in the constitution, then it nay give rise to
litigation if soneone thinks the legislature mssed the target.
He pointed out that the policy the |egislature has used over the
| ast 20 years has included inflation-proofing and protecting the
fund which is in statute. Represent ati ve Rokeberg asked where
the problem is. Perhaps it is with the public, he said. He
enphasi zed that the corporation has done a wonderful job of
creating and growing the fund; and the legislature has done a
good job of keeping its hands off of the fund.

Nunber 2706

CO CHAIR WH TAKER noted that Representative Rokeberg's concern
is with the definition of real value and subsequent potenti al
litigation. He asked if Representative Rokeberg is satisfied
with the |anguage that the appropriation may not exceed 5
per cent .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agr eed. In response to Co-Chair
Whitaker's request, Representative Rokeberg said he would
provi de an anmendnent to that effect.

Nunber 2744

JAY HOGAN, Deputy Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget,
Ofice of the Governor, testified on HIR 26 and answered

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- April 30, 2003



questi ons. He directed the nenbers' attention to Section 1
where two key words: “"principal” and "incone" are being del eted
from the constitution. This | anguage has been in place since
the [Al aska permanent fund] was adopted in 1976. According to
the constitution the inconme was to be deposited in the general
fund, but as Representative Rokeberg pointed out the legislature
has not done that. M. Hogan said it was [the adm nistration's]
feeling that with the principal gone and with inconme gone, it
woul d be appropriate to put the term "real incone” in the
constitution. This would becone the standard for the percent of
mar ket value (POW), as opposed to the standard of the previous
concept which differentiated between and relied upon the
concepts of principal and interest. He explained that the
renoval of these two terns are the strongest reason for
inserting the words "real value".

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that M. Hogan's argunent has
merit.

COCHAIR WH TAKER stated for the record that Representative
Harris had joined the neeting.

Number 3000

MR. LORENSEN stated that both he and Tamara Cook, Director,
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services, agree that this
| anguage creates a single standard which is 5 percent [payout].
The introductory language is really an explanation of why the 5
percent is there. VWiile it was an inportant issue for the
board, it no longer provides that second, independent standard,
he sai d. M. Lorensen said he believes that the only standard
that is enforceable wth respect to the actions of the
| egislature is the 5 percent POW rul e.

Nunber 3110

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he believes that the courts would
find that there are two standards in place one of which is [the
5 POW] and the other is that real value is maintained.

MR. HOGAN, as a person who was there when this decision was
debated originally, said it has always been a disappointnent to
him that the original concept of noney flowing into the genera
fund really never happened. One of the nmmin assunptions was
that the permanent fund would be available at such a tine as a
| egi sl ature and governor felt it was necessary to draw upon it.
By statute, the Ilegislature has made use of the otherw se

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2003



provided by law, rather than noney flowing into the general

fund. He said he believes that the term "real incone" is one
that is generally understood within the financial world. He
said a financial expert could appear in court and nake a
convincing argunment that it does nean sonething. It could be

showmn to have a direct relation to what the legislature is
trying to do, which is to protect the fund against inflation;
thereby, only using the average real incone of that fund which
turns out to be 5 percent.

Number 3331

REPRESENTATI VE  ROKEBERG  asked M. Bart hol omew  about a
hypot heti cal market situation in which there is a period of very
hi gh, double-digit inflation. He asked if the market typically
acts negatively to inflationary trends and in turn drives the
val ue down.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the executive director of the
Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation has previously testified that
what Representative Rokeberg described is a worst-case scenario.
He said that has happened in the past when there is high
inflation and droppi ng asset val ues.

Number 3433

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renmarked that in a situation in which
the corpus and principal of the fund was being eroded by a
hyper-inflationary situation, which would also drive val ue down,
this kind of |anguage would nean the |egislature would not be
able to draw out any funds.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW replied that if the board was neking a
recommendation in a one- or two-year period such as the one
Representative Rokeberg described, he said he believes the
board's reconmmendation would be to take the long-term view and
continue to recommend that the legislature would still be
protecting the fund by allowing an up to 5 percent distribution.
However, as Representative WIson previously discussed, if this
kind of situation lasted for five, eight, or ten years, then it
woul d be prudent to review that. He enphasized that it is
inportant to maintain a long-term view because there wll be
good and bad years in the future. The board looks at this in
five-, ten-, and fifteen-year periods, and he believes the board
woul d continue to recommend [the 5 percent payout].

Nunmber 3626

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked why the "over tinme" |anguage was
removed fromthe bill.

MR. LORENSEN responded that the "over tinme" |anguage was renoved
as a result of the comments made by Ms. Cook yesterday. It was
her view that "over tinme" is an anbiguous term and did not add
anything to the bill.

CO CHAIR WH TAKER commented that it is inportant to have the
| eeway to nmke judgnents about |anguage that would [m nim ze]
potential litigation.

Number 3800

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the easy way to avoid
litigation is to payout 100 percent to dividends.

COCHAIR HAWKER conmented that he is in agreement wth
Represent ati ve Rokeberg on the inportance of the long-term view
He said that he is concerned that w thout the over time or |ong-
term concept in this clause, there does not seem to be any
indication that real value is to be neasured over tine; assuring
that real value is being preserved could nean that there can
never be a decline in value however tenmporary. This is a grave
concern to him he said.

Nunber 3911

MR. LORENSEN responded that he understands the concern Co-Chair
Hawker rai sed. He commented that perhaps there is another way
to describe that |onger period of time wthout using the "over
ti me" | anguage.

MR HOGAN told the commttee that current state |aw descri bes

what "inconme" from the pernmanent fund neans. He said he thinks
the statute in Alaska is the appropriate place to fill in the
details and explanations of ternms such as real incone. He

pointed out that the current statute describes income for the
per manent fund. M. Hogan said he also believes that if it is
the legislature's intention to have these two terns travel as a
pair, then that presents a different legal argunment at sone
point in tinme because the details of what the legislature is
thinking is all i ncl uded, if not in the constitutional
anmendnent, in the statutes that acconpanies it.

Number 4049

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- April 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE commented that this is a delicate piece of
| egi slation, and she expressed the need to make the | anguage
very clear so there is no question [as to its neaning].

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI S asked why the first line in Section 2(b)
is included, as he believes it only serves to confuse the
publ i c. He said all that really needs to be said is that no
nore than 5 percent of the value of the fund averaged over five
years is to be used as a stream of revenue. He reiterated his

belief that the first line does not need to be in the bill at
all .
Number 4241

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the 5 percent was not included to
take noney off the table from the |I|egislature. That first
sentence addresses why 5 percent is used and that has to do with
asset allocation and the investnent philosophy of the permanent
fund [corporation] which shows that there will be 5 percent in
real incone available for distribution over the long term He
coormented that this [sentence] is explanatory |anguage which
could be related via the "record" rather than the constitution.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRIS opined that the words "ensure the real
value" in that first sentence could be interpreted differently
by | awers. For instance, in a year in which the rate of return
is less than 5 percent, the funds would actually be taken from
the principal of the fund. He questioned whether the
af orenenti oned would be interpreted as ensuring the real value
of the fund. He told the nenbers he believes [including this
| anguage in the bill] would be a bad thing.

Nunber 4519

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said in his experience courts construe
constitutional provi si ons differently t han st at ut es.
Constitutional provisions are usually very short and very broad
while statutes are nornmally nore detail ed. He used the anal ogy
of a body in which the constitution fornms the backbone, the
statutes provide the skeleton, and the regulations provide the
flesh while the agencies and the legal interpretations provide
the neat, bone, and skin. Although this kind of |anguage
[Section 2(b)] generally would not be in a constitution,
occasionally, it is. For example, in the [Al aska] Constitution
the right to keep and bear arns [includes explanatory | anguage]
as foll ows:

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- April 30, 2003



A well regulated mlitia being necessary to the
security of a free state, the right of the people to
keep and bear arns shall not be infringed.

TAPE 03-19, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that the first phrase is
t he purpose section. He added that the constitution was anended
to ensure that there was an individual right to keep and bear
arnms because the people of the state believed the proposed
section mght be unduly restrictive. He said it is inportant to
be careful what is put into the constitution because it could
| ater be wused against [the purpose of the amendnent]. He
summari zed his comments by saying there is precedent for placing
[ expl anatory | anguage in the constitution].

Nunber 4624

CO CHAI R HAWKER noted that the Second Amendnent has been one of
the nost heavily litigated, and nmay be a good argunent in
opposing the inclusion of this [explanatory cl ause].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to examne the
perceived problem that this |anguage is intended to cure. He
said he thinks the problem boils down to the question of how the
| egislature politically prevents the people from going into the

corpus [of the permanent fund]. If the concept of the fund is
changed to an endownent, there will be |less concern if there is
no dividend because it guarantees a payout. If this were not

the case, there could be a need to go to the [corpus of the
fund]. He asked M. Bartholonew if that is the primary purpose
of the anendnent.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that is the secondary reason for the

anendnent . The primary reason, he said, is to assure that
inflation-proofing of the fund noves from an optional annual
appropriation to [mandatory] inflation-proofing. This woul d be

done by noving [inflation-proofing] into the constitution and
ensuring the fund's protection against inflation is the top

priority. However, inflation-proofing could be done w thout
achieving the second objective, which is to assure an annual
di stribution. He said it is the board' s recommendation to
achi eve both objectives. This effect on the econony can go from
zero to a billion dollars and is very dramati c.

Nunmber 4314

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- April 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG commented that he prefers options that
allow the people who govern to wuse [whatever tools are
avai lable] to govern well, although that, too, is a risk because
those that govern can do so badly. He stated that he is not a
fan of dedicated funds and he does not support anending the
constitution very often. The permanent fund is the exception to
the rule, he said. If this anmendnent passes, this would nore
stringently dedicate funds by inposing nobre requirenents.
Al though the dividend is not in the constitution, it mght as
wel | be because it is so politically protected. He pointed out
that the legislature still has the legal option to do whatever
iS necessary to govern. He asked if there is a way to achieve
these goals w thout amending the constitution, thereby giving
the legislature the ability to do what it nust at sone future
time when faced with unforeseeabl e circunstances.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the board believes that the
proposed changes, which passed through the Alaska House of
Representatives last year in a statutory version, proves two
poi nt s. The statutory option to inflation-proof or not, truly
does not inprove the protection of the permanent fund, he said.
The second objective, which would take out that word "principal"”
which would allow the legislature in a short-term down period to
have an annual distribution, definitely cannot be achieved
w t hout anmending the constitution. In summary, he said, the
board believes these two objectives cannot be achieved w thout a
constitutional amendnent.

Number 3934

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if leaving the word "principal"” in
the first section while deleting all references to real value
and inflation-proofing would send a nessage to the public that
the principal woul d be nmaintai ned.

MR. BARTHOLOMEW responded that there is an attorney general's
opinion that is currently being worked on to determ ne whether
the permanent fund's historical interpretation of principal and

i ncone are accurate. Currently, there is no legal opinion
saying that the legal interpretations are incorrect, he said,
but by leaving the word principal in and renoving the

introductory phrase [out], this brings the nenbers back to the
proposal that was submitted to the legislature two years ago.

Number 3738

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- April 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that if the 6 percent
override in HIR 1 was deleted, the conmttee would have the
exact |anguage he believes is needed now.

[ HIR 26 was hel d over. ]

ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
9:20 a.m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -16- April 30, 2003



